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PRESIDENT’S
REPORT
The past year has been a busy one for the College – we’ve
embarked on numerous initiatives to ensure we continue to
run a world class ophthalmology training program and deliver
the best possible outcomes for ophthalmology patients in
the region. We’ve worked tirelessly to advance eye healthcare
across Australia and New Zealand through advocacy efforts
including multiple activities and discussions to inform the
MBS review of ophthalmology items, successfully lobbying
the NSW Government to outlaw the extremely dangerous
practice of eyeball tattooing, introducing Corneal Collagen
Cross Linking (CCXL) to the MBS in Australia and continuing
our work to address ophthalmology service delivery backlogs
across New Zealand. RANZCO has continued to advise the
Australian Department of Health on ophthalmology related
procedures and appropriate descriptors for MBS item
numbers, including new technologies.
As well as reviewing both our educational offering and
our governance and structures, our efforts have focused
on improving the trainee experience by ensuring that
trainees have adequate support from the College during
what is a highly stressful period in their careers. We’ve
also implemented several initiatives to support diversity
and inclusion and eliminate behaviours that constitute
discrimination, harassment or bullying in the workplaces of
our Fellows and trainees. We will be measuring the success
of these and previous initiatives with a follow-up Bullying,
Harassment and Discrimination Survey to take place in late2018.
The College has also been involved in ongoing discussions
with the National Medical Training Advisory Network (NMTAN)
to address future workforce needs across Australia, particularly
the need to address maldistribution of the ophthalmic
workforce. While the metropolitan areas are well served,
there is an increasing demand for ophthalmology services
in regional areas. Discussions have commenced with various
stakeholders to ensure that RANZCO is able to identify new
training sites and to allow for the recruitment and training of
more regional based ophthalmologists.
As leaders in the eye healthcare space, we’ve continued to
work with allied health professionals and other eye health
organisations to ensure greater efficiencies in providing eye
healthcare to our patients, to promote awareness of public

health issues and to provide resources for patients and eye
care professionals.
Closing the healthcare gap between our Indigenous and nonIndigenous populations has remained a priority throughout
my term as President. In Australia, increased engagement
at ministerial and departmental levels has been positive in
working towards solutions. Our advocacy in supporting the
Vision 2020 Australia endorsed Roadmap and our Fellows’
contributions in the states and territories are testament to this.
In New Zealand we have established the Māori and Pasifika
Health Committee to ensure RANZCO is able to enhance
service provision.
As my term as President draws to a close, I can reflect not just
on all that has been achieved over the past year, and the years
before that, but also the enormous amount of work that goes
into achieving that. RANZCO’s Fellows are instrumental in
delivering these achievements and dedicate huge amounts
of their precious time by serving on Boards and committees,
offering feedback and advice, acting as spokespeople for
the College and in the endless other ways they give to the
College. It has been a privilege to serve as President and to
work with my colleagues and with the RANZCO staff, led by
RANZCO CEO Dr David Andrews, whose organisation, clear
thinking and hard work are essential in driving the work that
the College does.
Over the past financial year, RANZCO has made great leaps
forward in how we deliver training, how we support our
Fellows and trainees and how we meet our responsibilities to
the wider community. This will be continued in coming years
by a new President, Dr Heather Mack, who will also draw on
the support and expertise of RANZCO Fellows, members and
staff.
I am very proud of all that we have achieved so far and I am
excited about all that we will achieve in the coming years by
working together for the future of the College, its members
and the communities we serve.
A/Prof Mark Daniell
RANZCO President
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CENSOR-IN-CHIEF’S
REPORT
Ongoing assessment of the effectiveness of the training we
provide is an important part of ensuring that RANZCO continues
to produce some of the best ophthalmologists in the world.
Over the past year RANZCO has focussed its efforts on ensuring
that we are ahead of the game with the most advanced training
curriculum and accreditation programs. As part of this process,
the past year has seen the commencement of the Curriculum
Review Project informed by Prof David Prideaux and led by Dr
Catherine Green AO, RANZCO’s Dean of Education.
In 2018, the Curriculum Committee was formed and a terms of
reference (ToR) was approved. The Qualification and Education
Committee (QEC) has approved the recommendation that
the outcome statements for the VTP be based on the existing
adapted CanMEDS competencies.
At the QEC meeting held in May 2018 the QEC approved two
recommendations; that RANZCO revise the processes for
surgical assessment to include weekly reporting on surgical
performance and that we modify our assessment processes to
facilitate programmatic assessment. Programmatic assessment
is a process in which multiple assessments using a variety
of assessment tools occur over the length of training, with
progression decisions separated from assessment decisions,
mapped to agreed milestones.
We have embarked on a new term assessment process which was
implemented in late-2017. The new process has been established
to better support trainees who are struggling to progress in
the program and to improve the trainee experience overall. I’m
pleased to report that the new process has been working well so
far with any trainee deemed to warrant a borderline or fail grade
being referred to the College. A review is then to be undertaken
by the Education Manager and Censor-in-Chief before the
grade is confirmed, ensuring that both supervisors and trainees
have the full backing of the College for any decisions that are
made. RANZCO is also encouraging supervisors to report on the
term assessment form and discuss with trainees any areas of
concern even if they are not at a borderline or fail level so that
performance issues can be managed as they arise. Our aim is to
identify and mitigate problems early on so that they can be dealt
with proactively.
In other developments, April 2018 saw a meeting for the
Selection Board which included a workshop delivered by Monash
University on the design of Situational Judgement Tests (SJTs). A
follow-up workshop in May 2018 validated approximately 40 SJTs
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developed by the Board for this year’s trial and a successful pilot
was run in June 2018.
In response to the National Medical Training Advisory Network’s
(NMTAN’s) determination that RANZCO needs to increase its
annual Australian trainee entry numbers from 31 currently
to between 42 and 63 by 2030 in order to meet demand for
ophthalmologists, RANZCO has decided to establish a new rurally
based training network. The ultimate goal is to have 12 dedicated
rural training posts and RANZCO aims to have the first three
Rural, Regional and Remote Training Program (RRRTP) positions
available for 2020.
RANZCO has also continued to work on the Specialist Training
Program (STP), which allows for federal funding of training posts
in areas of need, particularly in rural, lower socioeconomic and
paediatric posts. In 2018, the Australian Government approved
funding for 15 ophthalmology training posts across Australia.
From November 2017 to May 2018 the Training Post Inspection
Committee revised the accreditation policy and standards to
better suit workforce needs. The policy and amended standards
were approved by the QEC voting members in an out of session
circulation. The updated policy and standards were applied to the
recent Queensland and Lismore inspection and will be applied to
Victorian inspections to be held during 2019.
On another note, RANZCO recently transitioned to online exams
– a move that has gone very smoothly as demonstrated by the
success at the most recent RACE in June 2018. In the long term,
this will allow for a greater variety of question formats, better
quality images and improved legibility of answers and therefore
easier marking.
The General Manager for Vocational Training and Operations,
Craig Dowling, has begun work with the Dean of Education
to examine what RANZCO’s future needs are in relation to
e-Learning, factoring in staff and Fellow resources to maintain
an e-Learning environment for sustainability and the availability
of any external resources that we can link into (for example from
RACS). We recognise that the majority of the teaching occurs
in the individual networks and we therefore need to promote
effective ways to support this both in the major centres and in
the rural and remote training network.
Dr Justin Mora
RANZCO Censor-in-Chief

CEO’S REPORT
The 2017-2018 financial year has been a period of change
and growth for RANZCO. Our members have worked closely
with RANZCO staff to ensure we continue to meet and,
in most cases, exceed AMC accreditation requirements.
A lot of effort and dedication has gone in to enhancing
many aspects of RANZCO’s work. We have spent the year
reviewing and updating the College’s policies, processes
and governance to continue strengthening our position
as leaders in collaborative eye care. Particularly, we have
finalised a suite of governance documents to create better
transparency of decision making and assist everyone
involved in critical decision making when it comes to
patients.
Some highlights for 2017-2018 included launching the
Australian and New Zealand Eye Foundation (ANZEF) as a
new internal RANZCO committee dedicated to raising funds
for important education and research projects and RANZCO
taking on the day to day management of the Ophthalmic
Research Institute of Australia (ORIA) following the
retirement of its long-serving Chief Executive Officer Anne
Dunn-Snape. As well as this, we successfully relaunched
the JulEYE campaign with a renewed focus – to introduce
ANZEF as a committee dedicated to raising funds for
important education and research projects across Australia,
New Zealand and developing countries and to promote the
role of eye research in developing innovative treatments for
eye disease. With this in mind, the 2018 JulEYE campaign
celebrated the remarkable achievements of some of our
Fellows and others involved in eye research who secured
grants from organisations like ORIA to advance their work.

RANZCO is the willingness and abilities of staff to take on
new challenges and opportunities without fuss to produce
great results. However, they are only as good as the
support received from members, be they Fellows, practice
managers, orthoptists or trainees. As I regularly remind
staff, we operate in an increasingly regulated environment,
which is largely beyond our control to change, so having
the help of our members to provide expertise from the
frontline is essential.
In return, we are here to support the membership,
as RANZCO really is your organisation. Through this
collaborative approach we all improve our skills and the
outcome is a College that is continuously improving, raising
standards and facilitating better eye healthcare for people
in Australia, New Zealand and the broader region.
It is true that in my five years at RANZCO we have taken on
more and more, but in doing so we have achieved so much
to increase the positive influence of the College and our
members in the eye healthcare sector. Fortunately, for the
amount of work ophthalmology does, we have very few
issues, which is testament to the dedication that RANZCO
members have in delivering the very best care for their
patients.
Dr David Andrews
RANZCO CEO

RANZCO’s 2017 Annual Scientific Congress in Perth was
another successful meeting with around 1200 people in
attendance and more than $1 million generated in revenue
to support the College’s important work. This past year
has also seen opportunities for capacity building across
international development such as establishing fellowships
and providing support for local curriculum programs.
Alongside these accomplishments, we also managed to
achieve a modest head office surplus and, overall, we are
in a picture of good financial health. I would like to thank
all the RANZCO staff for adapting to the recent changes
we have embarked on and for being part of the College’s
ongoing success. One of the great things about working at
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ACHIEVING OUR
STRATEGIC
GOALS
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All College activities are designed to meet our five strategic priorities, which are focused on
delivering the highest quality eye healthcare for all through collaboration with stakeholders
within the health sector and externally. Our strategic priorities aim to strengthen our position
as a global leader in eye care education and training, and in setting eye health policy and
standards.

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
RANZCO will realise its vision and deliver on its mission by way of
five strategic priorities, all underpinned by our commitment to
ethics and achieved through collaboration.

EDUCATION,
TRAINING &
ACCREDITATION

ADVOCACY &
AWARENESS

MEMBER
ENGAGEMENT

Facilitate the
highest quality
practice of
ophthalmology
through
evidence based
education,
training and
accreditation.

Lead the policy
debate as
the trusted,
authoritative
source of
information
and research;
and promote
ophthalmology
as a medical
specialty, body
of knowledge
and career.

Represent,
support and
foster our
members’
interests;
and build
engagement,
ownership and
collegiality
among them.

STANDARDS

COLLEGE
ACTIVITIES

Set, monitor
and maintain
standards for
the provision of
highest quality
ophthalmology
practice in
Australia and
New Zealand.

Deliver superior
service and
value to our
members,
partners and
stakeholders to
ensure ongoing
sustainability.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY ONE:

EDUCATION, TRAINING & ACCREDITATION
We will facilitate the highest quality practice of ophthalmology
through evidence-based education, training and accreditation.
To continue delivering an
exceptional ophthalmology
training program and to produce
competent ophthalmologists across
Australia and New Zealand, we have
embarked on a comprehensive
review of our education and
training program which includes
an update of our selection process;
streamlined web access to learning
resources; commencing a complete
review and redevelopment of our
curriculum; enhancing the training
accreditation standards to prioritise
and strengthen the health, welfare
and interests of patients and
trainees.

EDUCATION REVIEW
Establishment
of Curriculum
Development
Project

Streamlined
access to
online learning
resources

Revision of
training post
accreditation
standards

CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AIMS

1

THE CURRICULUM
DEVELOPMENT
PROJECT
The Curriculum Development
Project commenced in 2017 to fulfil
the objectives set out in RANZCO’s
Strategic Priority One and to meet
the Australian Medical Council’s
(AMC’s) accreditation standards.
The project aims to ensure the
curriculum for the vocational
training program (VTP) supports
trainees in developing the attitudes,
skills and knowledge required to
enter practice as competent general
ophthalmologists. The Curriculum
Committee was established in
October 2017 with Professor David
Prideaux engaged to inform the
project and Dr Catherine Green
AO, RANZCO’s Dean of Education,
tasked with leading the project.

Review and
update of
VTP selection
process

3

Revise the curriculum
structure for the
RANZCO Vocational
Training Program
based firmly on
outcome statements
which indicate
what is required to
become a competent
ophthalmologist in
Australia and New
Zealand.
With the majority of
learning undertaken
in the workplace,
strengthen teaching and
learning in the training
program.
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2

4

Continue delivering
a comprehensive
program of
assessment using
best-practice
examinations
and workbased
assessments to enable
decision-making about
trainee progress and
graduation.

Execute a plan for
curriculum monitoring,
evaluation and
management for the
training program.

SELECTION
The College developed a centralised process for selecting
trainees into the VTP. The new process will come into effect
in 2019 for selection into training commencing 2020. In
August 2017 RANZCO formed a Selection Board, chaired by
Dr Michael Merriman, to review the VTP selection process
and ensure that the College meets the AMC’s standards
which include transparency, consistency and equity
across all jurisdictions. As part of this process, the College
has revised the criteria and weightings of the selection
components, introducing considerations for applicants
from rural or Indigenous backgrounds. A pilot of situational
judgment tests (SJTs) was also conducted in June 2018. SJTs
are tests used to assess individuals’ reactions to a number of
role relevant scenarios, which reflect situations candidates
are likely to encounter in their role as a doctor. Several
studies consistently show that SJTs used in many different
occupational groups are reliable and valid.

SUPPORTING TRAINEES AND THEIR
WELLBEING
To fulfil the Curriculum Development Project aims and to
ensure that trainees have adequate support to progress
through the program, the College introduced measures
to allow for earlier intervention for those trainees who
have demonstrated the need for focused training in a
specific area. With this in mind we’ve implemented an
enhanced supervisor feedback process for Work Based
Assessments (WBAs) and adopted the FIT feedback model,
which stipulates that in order for feedback to be effective it
should be frequent, interactive and timely. We’ve refocused
our policies to better support trainees in their training
environment including revising the Accredited Training
Site Policy to ensure that trainees operate in safe and
inclusive workplaces. The College has also been actively
involved in raising awareness about ways to achieve greater
work-life balance across its publications and by promoting
support services that are available to all College members –
specifically RANZCO’s employee assistance program (EAP).

e-LEARNING AND ONLINE
ASSESSMENTS
In 2017-18 the College
introduced a web feature to
enable combined sign-in to both
the RANZCO website and Moodle
to ensure greater efficiency
in accessing online learning
resources.
From Semester 1 2018 the
College has also successfully
transitioned to online
examinations with all Ophthalmic
Sciences written examinations.
These are being delivered
through computer-based
examinations at eight Cliftons’
venues across Australia and New
Zealand. The written component
of the RANZCO Advanced
Clinical Examinations (RACE)
and Ophthalmic Pathology
examinations will also be moving
to computer-based examinations
from Semester 2 2018.
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VTP SELECTION SNAPSHOT
2017-18
TRAINEES
APPOINTED

NOMP
RANZCO received 125
registrations to participate
in the 2018 National
Ophthalmology Matching
Program (NOMP) to fill
38 accredited training
positions.

AVERAGE AGE –
29.7 YEARS OLD

7 in New Zealand
15 in New South Wales
2 in Queensland
3 in South Australia
9 in Victoria
2 in Western Australia.

MALE APPOINTEES – 21 (55%)

FEMALE APPOINTEES – 17 (45%)

SPECIALIST INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL GRADUATES (SIMGS) – THE NUMBERS.
APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 1 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018

AUSTRALIA
COUNTRY APPLICATIONS
RECEIVED
India
England
Israel
Egypt
Malaysia
Canada
Iran

4
4
1
2
1
1
1

TOTAL

14
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NEW ZEALAND
COUNTRY APPLICATIONS
RECEIVED
England 2
Norway 1
Denmark 1
TOTAL
4

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
As well as training the future ophthalmologists of
Australia and New Zealand, RANZCO is responsible for the
professional development of our Fellows to make sure
that they continue to provide the best possible care to
patients throughout their careers. The College oversees the
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Program for
our Fellows so they have ongoing opportunities to maintain
and develop their clinical and non-clinical skills, knowledge
and attitudes. For the 2017 CPD cycle, the CPD Committee
achieved an impressive 99.91% compliance rate as well as
successfully completing the 2017 random CPD verification
audit of 5% of the Fellowship.
Following the final report from the AMC, minimal changes
were required to our CPD program and these have now
been implemented:
•

•
•

Continuing professional development requirements for
part-time Fellows have now been updated to be in line
with full-time Fellows.
A formal process for Fellows who request or require
retraining has been developed and implemented.
A formal process for Fellows who require remediation
has been developed and implemented.

PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE
FRAMEWORK (PPF)
Work towards implementation of the PPF began in 2016,
with discussions about revalidation and the need for
multi-source feedback (MSF) and Regular Practice Review.
RANZCO has now engaged CFEP as our MSF provider
and are looking at implementing MSF as part of the CPD
program in 2019.
The CPD handbook has be revised to emphasise the
need for Fellows to complete a Personal Development
Plan annually to ensure RANZCO Fellows are meeting the
requirements of the soon to be implemented PPF, as well as
an introduction of a general audit guide to assist primarily
non-surgical Fellows with completing an audit. This
handbook is being developed and will be published on the
RANZCO website later in the year.

RCAT
Audit made easy

RCAT is provided to
RANZCO Fellows as a
member benefit and is
free to access and use. It
currently facilitates cataract
surgical audit, but other
procedures will be added in
future iterations.
RCAT has a total of 322
users compromised of 310
Fellows, nine trainees, two
CPD customers and one
orthoptist submitting
14,163 procedures with
8,427 visual outcomes;
and an average visual
improvement of three lines
of 12 ETDRS letters and an
average refractive outcome
of -0.1.

The RANZCO Clinical Audit Tool (RCAT) is a resource which
has been developed to assist RANZCO members with
managing clinical audits. This tool has been designed by
Fellows for Fellows and assists in:
•
•
•
•

improving patient care leading to better outcomes;
learning more about your clinical practice through
benchmarking;
providing quality service; and
earning compulsory Clinical Expertise CPD points.

RANZCO ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018 - 13

STRATEGIC PRIORITY TWO:
ADVOCACY AND AWARENESS

We will lead the policy debate as the trusted, authoritative source of
information and research; and promote ophthalmology as a medical
speciality, body of knowledge and career. We will endeavour to build
capacity in the Asia Pacific region.
In line with Strategic Priority Two, over 2017-18
RANZCO has played a significant role in shaping
eye health policy and raising awareness about
issues that matter to our members, their patients
and the profession. The last year saw RANZCO
actively involved in stakeholder engagement
and advocacy efforts to bring eye healthcare
to the forefront of the policy agenda in both
Australia and New Zealand, cementing our
role as the trusted, authoritative source of
information and research in the region. We’ve
also been proactive in the international
development space by supporting capacity
building initiatives in low-resource settings and
addressing health inequalities in developing
countries as part of our commitment to
improving eye care at a global level.

ADVOCACY AND ENGAGEMENT
RANZCO’s Medicare Advisory Committee
has engaged in ongoing advocacy work
throughout the year. The Committee has
continued discussions with the Australian
Government around MBS items as well as
ongoing preparation in the lead up to the
MBS Review of Ophthalmology, which finally
commenced in June. Notably, the Committee
worked with special interest groups to prepare
several submissions to the Department of
Health on a range of issues relating to MBS
items and upcoming MBS changes, including:
oculoplastic MBS items; OCT items; the Medicare
Claims Review Panel; and application of new
rules on MBS specialist consultation items. The
Committee also prepared submissions to the
Department of Health raising concerns about
proposed changes to private health insurance
that will affect ophthalmology patients,
including planned coverage for ophthalmology
in the upcoming standardised private health
insurance product categories.
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ADVOCACY

2017-18

HIGHLIGHTS
CORNEAL COLLAGEN CROSS LINKING FOR KERATOCONUS ADDED TO THE MBS
On the advocacy front, a key highlight for the year was the introduction of Corneal Collagen Cross Linking (CCXL) for the
treatment of keratoconus to the Medicare Benefits Schedule (MBS) in Australia on 1 May 2018. In a campaign led by RANZCO Fellow
Dr Nick Downie the innovative treatment was allocated a Medicare item number after six years of lobbying government. This was a
remarkable achievement for the College as Medicare rebates for CCXL will take us one step further to ensuring patients have equitable
access to innovative treatments.

EYEBALL TATTOOING BY NON-MEDICAL PROFESSIONALS OUTLAWED IN NSW
In Australia, RANZCO also called on state and federal governments to take action to outlaw eyeball tattooing being practiced by
anyone who is not a medically trained eye care professional in response to increasing international media reports about injuries
caused by this dangerous practice.
In September 2017, following on from discussions with the NSW Minister for Health Brad Hazzard, the College was successful in
achieving amendments to NSW legislation restricting the dangerous practice to medical practitioners only, or other qualified persons
as prescribed by the Regulations. This move reflects the importance of having the right precautions in place to deter eye ball tattooing,
minimising the risk of injury. Not only will this help prevent the life altering impact of vision loss for individuals, but it may also prevent
the burden on the public health system, as severe eye injuries require complex treatment and ongoing medical care.
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DELIVERING THE BEST OUTCOMES
FOR PATIENTS THROUGH AWARENESS
RAISING
Throughout the year, RANZCO developed position statements
and clinical guidelines in response to issues relevant to and/
or directly impacting ophthalmology patients. These activities
are aimed at guiding those involved in the eye health sector
in the delivery of optimum patient care and safety while
promoting issues related to public eye health.
RANZCO’s Therapeutic Committee continued to work with
the RANZCO Board and Council and special interest groups
(SIGs) with the aim of monitoring significant changes to
government legislation, keeping Fellows informed of key
changes, highlighting the impact on practice and identifying
opportunities to collaborate with stakeholders on government
submissions. In response to government regulatory bodies
including the Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA), the
Pharmaceutical Benefits Scheme (PBS), the Pharmaceutical
Benefits Advisory Committee (PBAC), the Medicare Benefits
Scheme (MBS), the Medical Services Advisory Committee
(MSAC) and the Australian Department of Health, RANZCO
participated in a number of consultation and review processes
endorsing proposed changes or advocating for specific
changes to legislation, clinical standards or regulations around
prescribing ophthalmic prescription drugs or therapies.
In mid-2018, RANZCO’s Therapeutics and Public Health
Committees undertook advocacy activities to raise awareness
about the dangers associated with over the counter (OTC)
chloramphenicol use. This led to the development of a
position statement guiding best practice around prescribing
the antibiotic eye drops. As part of the stakeholder
engagement process and to promote RANZCO’s role as
leaders in collaborative eye care, the Committees consulted
with the Australia and New Zealand Cornea Society (ANZCS),
the RANZCO New Zealand Branch and Optometry Australia in
developing the position statement.
In collaboration with RANZCO’s Communications team,
RANZCO’s Public Health Committee continued to undertake
advocacy activities to raise awareness about eye disease and
help address preventable vision loss and blindness, with a
specific focus this year on ocular trauma.
In March 2018, the College released a UV Position Statement
which was developed by the Public Health Committee in
collaboration with the Cancer Council Australia’s National Skin
Cancer Committee. The aim of the position statement was to
improve public awareness about the impact of UV on the eyes
and what constitutes adequate sun protection.
In line with its strategic focus, the Public Health Committee
established the Orthokeratology Patient Guidelines in
June 2018 to ensure safety and manage expectations of
outcomes for patients undergoing orthokeratology. The
guidelines provide information on appropriate care and use
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of orthokeratology as well as highlighting the potential risks
associated with the procedure.
In 2018 the College was also involved in an expert advisory
group to develop a stem cell position statement evaluating
evidence and best practice in stem cell research across
Australia and New Zealand. Stakeholder engagement
involved consultations with Stem Cells Australia (SCA) to
develop a patient brochure informing patients and health
professionals of the role of stem cells in treating eye disease.
As part of the campaign, the College released a position
statement, patient leaflet and media release dispelling myths
and misconceptions and increasing awareness of the risks
associated with treatments not supported by evidence.
In Eye2Eye we continued to raise awareness of key issues
affecting ophthalmologists and their patients including a twopart series raising awareness about the increasing prevalence
of ocular trauma in the home and workplace and focusing on
prevention strategies.
All of RANZCO’s awareness raising work has been kindly
supported by RANZCO Fellows, who have provided
expertise and acted as spokespeople for political and media
engagement activities. To support the Fellows in this role,
RANZCO has rolled out media training workshops to train
RANZCO spokespeople for media interviews and key message
development.

RANZCO IN THE HEADLINES
MORE THAN 20,000 PEOPLE
OVERDUE FOR EYE TREATMENT
RANZCO TO INCREASE INDIGENOUS
AND REGIONAL EYE CARE

COLLABORATION BETWEEN EYE CARE
PROFESSIONALS IMPROVES GLAUCOMA
MANAGEMENT EYE SPECIALISTS TAKE
AIM AT IRLEN SYNDROME BLIND

PATIENTS NOW READING
AGAIN DUE TO STEM CELLS NZ

PATIENT RESOURCE AIMS TO INFORM
EYE HEALTH CONVERSATION KIWI

AND AUSSIE OPHTHALMOLOGISTS
CALL FOR A TOTAL BAN ON EYE
TATTOOING THERE’S NO SUCH
THING AS IRLEN SYNDROME, SAYS
RANZCO

EYE HEALTH
ABORIGINAL

MĀORI
TORRES STRAIT ISLANDER
PASIFIKA

ADDRESSING ABORIGINAL, TORRES STRAIT
ISLANDER, MĀORI, PASIFIKA EYE HEALTH AND
ACCESS ISSUES
In line with RANZCO’s commitment to Aboriginal, Torres Strait Islander,
Māori and Pasifika eye health we have undertaken a range of activities
to improve health outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander,
Māori and Pasifika peoples over the year.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE MĀORI AND PASIFIKA
HEALTH COMMITTEE
In 2018, the Māori and Pasifika Health Committee was established to
increase cultural competence, equity and participation in regard to
Māori and Pasifika patients and doctors in New Zealand.

IMPROVING ABORIGINAL AND TORRES STRAIT
ISLANDER EYE HEALTH
To reflect the establishment of the new RANZCO Māori and Pasifika
Health Committee, in early 2018 the RANZCO Indigenous Committee
changed its name to the RANZCO Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Eye Health Committee (ATSIEHC).
ATSIEHC has led RANZCO’s engagement with new specialist trainees
in the Medical Workforce Project led by the Australian Indigenous
Doctors Association (AIDA) and the Department of Health’s National
Medical Training Advisory Network (NMTAN). This included a number of
submissions from RANZCO about current and future training practices
and standards with regards to Indigenous health and the Indigenous
medical workforce. Additionally, in the past financial year RANZCO has
increased its collaboration work in the Indigenous eye health sector,
including: participation in sector-wide advocacy around improving
outreach funding, identifying areas of particular need across Australia,
and better engaging with jurisdictional outreach funding stakeholders.

ADDRESS

ESTABLISH

IMPROVE
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From an international perspective the past year has seen
the International Development Committee (IDC) remain
active at the global level by participating in capacity building
initiatives in developing countries, which involved overseeing
ophthalmology training programs and contributing to the
professional development of local ophthalmologists.
RANZCO’s IDC members participated in International Agency
for the Prevention of Blindness (IAPB) and Vision2020
activities, to improve health outcomes for patients in low
resource settings. RANZCO is also an active member of the
Australian Council for International Development (ACFID)
and has contributed to the development of the ACFID
Practice Note. Guided by ACFID, RANZCO continued its role in
promoting best practice and principles for all involved in the
delivery of international development programs. Notably, over
the year the IDC has broadened its portfolio scope to include
the monitoring of operational research and supporting the
advancement of women in RANZCO’s programming and
capacity building initiatives.
In 2017, through its International Scholarship Program, the
College awarded scholarships to support the professional
development of four ophthalmologists from the Asia Pacific
region by providing them the opportunity to attend RANZCO’s
49th Annual Scientific Congress in Perth and participate
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in the International Development Workshop (focusing on
oculoplastics).
Throughout the year RANZCO Fellows continued to conduct
visits to countries in the Asia Pacific region as part of
the College’s capacity building exercises. Visits included
subspecialty teaching visits to the Pacific Eye Institution (PEI)
in Fiji and the Regional Eye Centre (REC) in the Solomon
Islands.
As part of our work in the Pacific Islands, RANZCO also
commenced the Pacific Ophthalmology Curriculum Review
in partnership with PEI. We also continue work with the
University of Papua New Guinea on strengthening the
ophthalmology workforce in the region by leading the PNG
Ophthalmology Curriculum Review.
Support has also been provided to the RANZCO Queensland
Eye Project on phacoemulsification training in Nepal.
In collaboration with the University of Health Science,
the National Program for Eye Health, NGO partners and
the Cambodian Ophthalmological Society, international
development activities in Cambodia have focused on
strengthening the existing training curriculum and
continuing professional development (CPD) opportunities
available for local ophthalmologists.

ANZEF

THE AUSTRALIAN AND NEW
ZEALAND EYE FOUNDATION

FORMING THE
AUSTRALIAN AND
NEW ZEALAND
EYE FOUNDATION
(ANZEF) TO
SUPPORT
LOCAL AND
INTERNATIONAL
EDUCATION
AND RESEARCH
PROJECTS

The Australian and New Zealand Eye
Foundation (ANZEF) was established in
2018 as a new internal RANZCO committee
dedicated to raising funds for important
education and research projects across
Australia, New Zealand and developing
countries. ANZEF was set up to replace the
charitable functions of the Eye Surgeons’
Foundation which ceased operations in
2017. ANZEF’s aim is to fundraise and
facilitate the distribution of donations
for innovative research into eye disease,
improve the lives of people who need eye
care and help prevent avoidable blindness
in the Asia Pacific region.
The ANZEF Committee consists of up to
11 people, including the President of the
College (ex officio); the Censor in Chief
(ex officio); the CEO of the College (ex
officio); at least three Fellows of RANZCO;
and appointed members. The inaugural
Chair of ANZEF is Dr John Kennedy. Other
Committee members include Dr Clare
Fraser and Dr Stephen Best.

Australian and New Zealand
Eye Foundation
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY THREE:
MEMBER ENGAGEMENT

We will represent, support and foster our members’ interests; and
build engagement, ownership and collegiality among them.
Over the past 12 months, we have
continued to ensure that all College
projects represent the interests of
our members by providing them with
opportunities to discuss, learn and
contribute to the eye healthcare sector
as well as opportunities to socialise and
network with other members.

ANNUAL SCIENTIFIC
CONGRESS
In 2017 RANZCO’s 49th Annual
Scientific Congress held in Perth from
28 October – 1 November lived up to its
reputation as the leading medical eye
care event in the Asia Pacific, attracting
more attendees and revenue than
previous years. The Scientific Program
Committee and RANZCO worked hard
to develop the Congress program,
which offered a range of excellent
symposia, workshops, presentations
and keynote addresses from renowned
international and local speakers.
The 2017 Congress also delivered an
exceptional social program giving
delegates plenty of opportunity to
mingle and network with their peers.

2017 DELEGATE
BREAKDOWN

622
RANZCO
Fellows

49

ophthalmologists
from the region
and further
abroad

120

practice
managers
and
associated
practice staff
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228

orthoptists,
nurses, vision
scientists,
local and
international
allied health
practitioners

The Local Organising Committee was
led by Congress Co-Convenors A/Prof
Angus Turner and Dr Fred Chen and the
Scientific Program Committee was led
by Professor Helen Danesh-Meyer.

84

RANZCO
registrars,
junior medical
doctors and
those seeking
a career in
ophthalmology

27

accompanying
partners

INVITED
SPEAKERS

CONGRESS PRIZE WINNERS

NAMED LECTURES
COUNCIL LECTURE
Prof Jonathan Crowston
SIR NORMAN GREGG LECTURE
Dr Noel Alpins AM
DAME IDA MANN LECTURE
Prof Trevor Sherwin
FRED HOLLOWS LECTURE
Dr Geoffrey Cohn OAM

BEST PAPER PRIZE
The Gerard Crock Trophy for best paper presentation from a
senior ophthalmologist
Dr Chelsea Guymer
The John Parr Trophy for best paper presentation from a senior
ophthalmologist
Dr Reid Ferguson
Best Poster Prize
Dr Karl D. Brown

FILM FESTIVAL PRIZES
Best Community Ophthalmology Film
Pauline Khoo
Best Surgical Technique Film
Dr Anand Pasari

UPDATE LECTURES

Best Research Film
Jennifer Jane McGhee

GLAUCOMA
Dr Anne Coleman

Best Overall Film
Jennifer Jane McGhee

RETINA
Prof Lyndon da Cruz
CATARACT
Dr Bonnie Henderson
OCULOPLASTIC
Prof Don Kikkawa
PAEDIATRICS
Prof Michael Brodsky

CPD AUDIT PRIZE
Dr Uday Bhatt

SCHOLARSHIPS
Allergan/RANZCO Scholarship (x 2)
Dr Nicholas Andrew, Glaucoma Fellowship with Prof Tony Wells in
Wellington, New Zealand
Dr Genevieve Oliver, PhD placement to study ‘Viral and Parasitic
Infections of Human Retina’ at Flinders University, SA
Alcon/RANZCO Scholarship
Parth Sha, Paediatric Ophthalmology Fellowship at the Children’s
Hospital of Pittsburgh of UPMC
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COLLEGE AWARDS
College Medal
Dr Allan Rosenberg

Distinguished Service Medal
Dr Dianne Sharp

The Filipic Greer Medal

AWARDS

Dr Nicholas Cheng

The K.G. Howsham Medal
Dr Helen Chan

Trainers of Excellence
The following trainers were nominated by trainees for
exemplifying excellence in planning, communication,
assessment and evidence-based professional practice.
Dr Ross Fitzsimons (Sydney Eye Network)
Dr Tim Henderson (South Australia Network)
Dr Con Petsoglou (Sydney Eye Network)
A/Prof Anne Brooks (Victoria Network)
Dr Antony Bedggood (New Zealand Network)
Dr Russell Bach (Queensland Network)

During the reporting
period, a number of
College members
and other eye care
professionals were
recognised for their
work on behalf of the
College; for medicine;
in ophthalmology;
and for their work
in communities in
Australia, New Zealand
and overseas.

AUSTRALIA DAY 2018 AWARDS
Prof Paul Mitchell AO for distinguished service to
ophthalmology as a clinician, particularly in the management of
age-related macular degeneration, through research into public
health and ophthalmic epidemiology, and as an educator.
Dr Ross Littlewood AO for significant service to medicine as an
ophthalmologist, to professional medical organisations, and to
the international community of Timor Leste.
Dr Phillip House AO for significant service to medicine as
an ophthalmologist, to eye surgery foundations, and to the
international community of Timor Leste.
A/Prof Julian Rait AO for service to ophthalmology, and to the
development of overseas aid.

QUEEN’S BIRTHDAY 2018 AWARDS
Prof Robyn Guymer AM
For significant service to medicine in the field of ophthalmology,
particularly age related macular degeneration, as a clinician,
academic and researcher.
Dr Timothy Henderson AM
For significant service to medicine in the field of ophthalmology,
and to Indigenous eye health in the Northern Territory.
Prof Lawrence Hirst AM
For significant service to medicine in the field of ophthalmology
through the development of clinical care techniques and eye
disease management.
Dr Sudarshan Sachdev OAM
For service to the community, and to medicine, particularly to
ophthalmology.
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GROUP REPORTS
The RANZCO groups represent sectors of the RANZCO
fellowship, bringing together ideas and experience and
promoting the interests of female Fellows, younger Fellows,
older and retired Fellows and practice managers. The groups
often have activities and representatives contributing to
important College meetings, including the various branch
meetings and Congress, to provide insight from that sector of
the fellowship.
Over the 2017-2018 year, the Women in Ophthalmology
Advisory Group undertook a number of engagement
activities, including a survey of the membership to collect
expressions of interest to join committees or speak or chair at
events; sending welcome letters to new Fellows and trainees
to introduce the Group and its role in the College, conducting
branch-level meetings in South Australia and NSW. The Group
also promoted the Women & Leadership Australia 100 Days for
Change initiative, highlighting the important role that women
play in the ophthalmology profession. Genevieve Oliver, the
Chair of the Women in Ophthalmology Advisory Group, and
support staff also attended a range of women in health and
women in medicine events throughout the year, representing
ophthalmology and promoting these events back to female
Fellows and trainees. This included the International Women’s
Day 2018 – Women & Leadership Australia’s National Health
Sector Women’s Leadership Summit.
At the 2017 RANZCO Congress, the Women in
Ophthalmology Advisory Group co-sponsored the Ocular
Trauma: Secrets and Lies Symposium that dealt with
topics such as child abuse and neglect, the role of the
ophthalmologist in identifying domestic violence cases and
management of trauma in rural and remote Australia. This
included funding for guest speaker, A/Prof Erin Shriver from
Iowa, USA. This was followed up by an article in the summer
edition of Eye2Eye.
In addition, A/Prof Shriver attended the Committee meeting
of the group and provided valuable insight to gender equity
issues on an international scale and the Group hosted the
first Women in Ophthalmology lunch, which focussed on
networking and informal discussions.
Representing those Fellows in their first 10 years of fellowship,
the Younger Fellows’ Advisory Group held a number of events
during the year, including sponsored forums discussing
mitigating risk, business management sessions, media training
and networking drinks at branch meetings.
At the 2017 RANZCO Congress, the Younger Fellows held a
dinner event and a course on Younger Fellows – Life Beyond
Training. The Life Beyond Training course was chaired by
Dr Nisha Sachdev and Dr Kenneth Chan and included an
introduction to the Younger Fellows Advisory Group as well
as talks on The College and its composition: what it can offer

younger Fellows by Dr Christine Younan; Overseas Aid work:
a younger Fellow’s perspective by Dr Matt Ball; The good, the
bad and the ugly of ophthalmology by Dr Clayton Barnes and
Advertising and Marketing regulations – new changes with
case studies by Ms Candice Danby.
The Younger Fellows’ Advisory Group has also been working
on a welcome pack for newly admitted Fellows, collaborating
with the Practice Managers’ Committee and the Medicare
Advisory Committee. This will be rolled out to new Fellows in
the second half of 2018.
Younger Fellows’ Advisory Group Chair Dr Nisha Sachdev
stepped down after a number of years with the group. The role
of Chair was taken up by Dr Kenneth Chan (Wellington) and a
new Deputy Chair, Dr Chameen Samarawickrama, was elected.
Representing the Fellows who are over 70 and/or retired, the
Senior and Retired Fellows’ Group had a successful and happy
meeting in Perth for the 2017 Congress. The Seniors’ Lounge
area was well situated, allowing Fellows to take in all of the
energy of the trade hall whilst relaxing in their own designated
area. The lunchtime lectures provided a nice balance between
the past and the future. The Senior and Retired Fellows’ dinner
provided a fabulous opportunity for Fellows and their partners
to reminisce and enjoy some fine dining and entertainment.
As 2017 came to an end, Dr Emmanuel Gregory passed the
baton over to Prof John Crompton as Chair of the Senior and
Retired Fellows’ Group for the two-year term.
Finally, the Practice Managers’ Group had a major focus for
the year on the coordination and delivery of the Practice
Managers’ Conference in conjunction with RANZCO Congress
in Perth on 29-31 October 2017. Despite the lure of Perth’s
beautiful surroundings, there was a very good attendance,
with the event attracting 130 practice managers from
Australia, New Zealand and abroad. Delegates enjoyed the
wide range of education on the program, the opportunity
to explore a range of services and products at the trade hall
and the advantage of networking and forming continuing
friendships with likeminded people. As for movements within
the Committee, we would like to thank Ms Judith Parnell from
New Zealand for her valuable contribution to the Committee
during her term onboard. Joining the Committee is Ms Alison
Pennington and Ms Ingrid Durkin, both from NSW. This brings
the Committee to a total of 10 members, well represented
from states around Australia as well as from New Zealand.

WOMEN IN OPHTHALMOLOGY ADVISORY GROUP

PRACTICE MANAGERS’ GROUP

SENIOR & RETIRED FELLOWS’ GROUP
YOUNGER FELLOWS’ ADVISORY GROUP
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RANZCO BRANCHES
NEW
ZEALAND

NEW SOUTH
WALES

The RANZCO New Zealand Branch has
advocated on behalf of its members in
key areas that directly affect ophthalmic
practice. These advocacy efforts
include participation in the campaign
to address recent eye care waiting
time backlogs. The Branch has led
collaborative efforts to improve access
to ophthalmology services in district
health boards (DHBs) across the country
and continued its work on developing
collaborative guidelines for major eye
diseases, catering to the specific needs
of the New Zealand population.

The RANZCO NSW Branch has continued
to engage members on collegial
activities, advocating for patients and
supporting member needs. The key focus
for the year was on raising awareness
about public health issues and lobbying
for improved access to eye healthcare for
patients across NSW.

The Branch has continued to provide
member engagement opportunities
with the New Zealand Branch Annual
Scientific Meeting being hosted by Dr
Sue Ormonde and Prof Trevor Sherwin
in Auckland from 11 to 12 May 2018.
The meeting was another successful
event with a great turnout and some
stimulating discussions on a range of
ophthalmic issues.
Key achievements for the New
Zealand Branch over the year were:
•

•

The launch of the NZ National
guidelines for management of
neovascular AMD in mid-2018,
providing an evidence based
resource for optometrists, GPs and
other health care professionals
that outlines referral and treatment
best practice for managing the care
of patients with, or suspected of
having, AMD.
Participating in discussions with
the new NZ Minister of Health to
put the case forward for increased
investment in ophthalmology
across the country in order to
improve outcomes for patients.

As part of its commitment to fostering
collegiality among its members, the NSW
Branch held its 2018 Annual Scientific
Meeting from Friday 16 to Saturday
17 March 2018 at the Crowne Plaza
Hunter Valley Conference and Events
Centre. The meeting proved to be an
outstanding success with the theme
being Ophthalmology – Its Ups and
Downs, which covered the management
of potential complications in practice
and strategies to minimise these.
Key achievements for the NSW Branch
over the year were:
•

•

•

•

Achieving changes to state
legislation that has made eyeball
tattooing illegal in NSW for nonmedical practitioners.
Continued lobbying for state
government to address cataract
waiting lists, with this now
becoming a key focus for the NSW
Health Minister.
Assisting Fellows in upgrading the
quality and scope of public hospital
clinics, particularly in the high
population growth areas of Western
Sydney.
Continued collaboration with
allied health to improve eye
healthcare in the region with the
NSW Branch members holding
an ophthalmology seminar at the
Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners’ annual conference.
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VICTORIA

The RANZCO Victoria Branch has
actively engaged with the state
government and other stakeholders
to voice concerns about a number of
issues concerning patient safety, such
as improving regulations governing
laser surgery and consultation on
improving eyesight fitness to drive
assessments in the state.
As part of its annual calendar of
events, the Victoria Branch held
its Annual Scientific Meeting on 3
March 2018 at the Woodward Centre
of the University of Melbourne. The
meeting offered updates and talks
on a range of ophthalmology topics,
providing interest to generalists and
subspecialists. A key focus of this
year’s meeting was on doctor health
and wellbeing with Dr Leanne Rowe
(Melbourne GP, past RACGP chairman
and past beyondblue board member)
speaking at the dinner meeting to
promote work-life balance in the
medical profession.
Key achievements for the Victoria
Branch over the year were:
•

Influencing changes to Health
Services (Private Hospitals and Day
Procedure Centres) Regulations
2013, which will result in better
regulation of cataract surgery,
particularly laser-assisted cataract
surgery.

•

Participation in a VicRoads action
group formed in response to the
State Coroner’s recommendation
to introduce mandatory reporting
of patients who do not meet
fitness to drive requirements.

SOUTH
AUSTRALIA

WESTERN
AUSTRALIA

In 2017, the RANZCO South Australia
Branch Annual General Meeting was
held on 19 September at the Cathedral
Hotel in North Adelaide. The meeting
was well attended and saw Dr Garry
Davis stand down from the position
of Chair, which he held for two highly
successful terms. Also standing down
was, equally longstanding, Dr Stuart
Lake, previous Honorary Secretary and
Treasurer. The new Chair is Dr Mark
Chehade, and new Honorary Treasurer
Dr Matthew Little.

The 2017 Western Australia Branch
Meeting was held at the Margaret River
in November, a week after RANZCO’s
49th Annual Scientific Congress in
Perth. A highlight of the meeting
was the excellent symposium on
Innovation: Incremental vs Disruptive
Change where some of Australia’s most
innovative ophthalmologists provided
insights into the travails and highlights
of the translation and development
process of their great research ideas.
The session started with Prof Ian
McAllister providing a history of the
development of the ophthalmoscope
(he showed a fantastic display of those
instruments at the Museum section
in the trade hall during Congress).
This was followed by talks from Prof
Minas Coroneo, Vision Blue and Cypass
implant developer; Prof Bill Morgan,
Xen implant developer; Prof Ian
Constable, developer of transvection
gene therapy for AMD; Prof Graham
Barrett, intra-ocular lens calculation
formulae developer; and Prof Charles
McGee, institute director, who all
provided unique stories about their
developments over the years.

QUEENSLAND

2018 has been a busy and exciting
period for the RANZCO Queensland
Branch. The Annual Scientific Meeting
was held on the Gold Coast from 4 to 6
August 2017 and was once again a very
successful event, covering all things
retina. The organising committee,
including Drs Jim McAllister, Rowan
Porter and Gurmit Uppal, put in
incredible effort to coordinate a
meeting which combined relevant and
up to date clinical presentations with
the usual relaxed and social setting at
Marina Mirage Gold Coast. The meeting
attracted renowned international
speakers, including Prof Nicholas Jones,
Dr Cathy Egan and Prof Adnan Tufail,
who presented the very latest in trends
in retina management along with
current investigative research.
Key achievements for the
Queensland Branch over the year
were:
•

•

Increased collaboration with GPs,
with the Branch introducing,
as a new feature of the annual
meeting, a dedicated GP upskilling
workshop, to help GPs manage
eye problems in daily practice.
Coordinating workforce planning
to address needs across the
state and engaging with state
government officials including the
Queensland Minister for Health to
discuss where medical manpower
is heading and to work towards
solutions.

Over the year, a key focus for the
Branch has been addressing capacity
issues and increasing waiting times
for patients at the new Royal Adelaide
Hospital. Since the establishment of the
hospital, many theatre lists have been
cancelled and waiting lists are growing
progressively. South Australia Branch
members have been actively involved
in discussions with allied health and
the state government to work towards
solutions including modifying patient
pathways to enhance efficiency.
Key achievements for the South
Australia Branch over the year were:
•

Engaging in discussions to address
capacity issues and increasing
waiting times for patients at the
new Royal Adelaide Hospital.

•

Assisting three SA residents obtain
accredited registrar positions,
which will help to build capacity
and better meet patient needs
across the state.

Key achievements for the Western
Australia Branch over the year were:
•

Continued advocacy for patients
with submission to the WA
Sustainable Health Review which
covered the Branch’s assessment
of the current provision of public
ophthalmology services for the
state.

•

Establishment of the WA
Ophthalmology Registrars
Society by WA registrars to
increase educational and social
opportunities for local registrars.
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TASMANIA

The RANZCO Tasmania Branch
welcomed over 70 attendees to its
annual meeting which was held at the
Hotel Grand Chancellor from 23 to 24
June 2018.

M

The theme for the meeting was Cornea
Unplugged: Cornea and its Diseases for
the Comprehensive Ophthalmologist
with attendees travelling from all
over Australia to listen to a series of
informative lectures from leading
experts in the field.
One of the highlights for delegates
was the Challenging Cases and Audit
Session. Topics included Case series of
subretinal lenticular material and Case
report of severe acute anterior chamber
inflammation leading to formation of
hypopyon following corneal instillation
of cyanoacrylate adhesive.
The Branch has continued to work
on capacity building initiatives in
East Timor to further the College’s
international development aims.
Key achievements for the Tasmania
Branch over the year were:
•

Facilitating the education of
two Timor Leste doctors who
are holders of a Diploma of
Ophthalmology from the National
University of East Timor (UNTL)
and are currently studying for their
Masters in a three-year program
in Nepal. Their studies have been
supported and facilitated through
the East Timor Eye Program (ETEP).
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TR

MEDIA TRAINING
FOR
MEMBERS
The RANZCO Communications team offers free

media
training
for Fellows who are interested i
Over
2017-18
the RANZCO’s
Communications
teamskills
rolled in:
out media
improving their
training workshops for all members
across Australia and New Zealand, hosting
Keythroughout
message the
development
nine sessions
year.
These workshops are aimed at developing
confident spokespeople to represent the
Media
organisation
and toengagement
support our political
and media engagement activities. The
sessions are
specificallywith
designed
to give – in print,
Interviews
journalists
participants an insight into how the media
on radio
TV
operates, how
to dealand
with on
journalists
and
the benefits of engaging with the media
through practical sessions exploring
interview scenarios for radio and TV.
For more information, please contact:
Emma Carr General Manager – Communications E: ecarr@ran
Josie Faunce Communications Officer E: jfaunce@ranzco.edu

1
2
3

Please note, media training sessions take about 3-4 hours per session, with a m
session. The communications team is happy to travel to state capitals to condu
with busy schedules. We will arrange sessions so as to include as many people a

STRATEGIC PRIORITY FOUR:
STANDARDS

We will set, monitor and maintain standards for the provision of the
highest quality ophthalmology practice in Australia and New Zealand.
A core aspect of achieving the objectives set out in Strategic
Priority Four is ensuring that the College upholds Australian
Health Practitioner Regulation Agency (AHPRA) and Medical
Council of New Zealand (MCNZ) policies that are relevant to
ophthalmology and service provision. This year this included
RANZCO completing the Professional Performance Support
and Voluntary Retraining Policy which satisfies the AMC
conditions 51 and 52.
The policy has been developed with a supportive tone and
pays particular attention to ensuring that re-entry to practice
is not onerous for those returning from parental leave (while
still meeting AHPRA’s guidelines in terms of ‘Recency of
Practice’).
In line with the updated registration standards from the
Medical Board of Australia (MBA) and the MCNZ, the CPD
Committee has reviewed and updated the CPD Handbook to
reflect these changes.
Over the last year, the Professional Standards Committee has
been working to review, update and amend the NUCLEUS
Program to reflect the changes in the recently revised
Australian Commission on Safety and Quality in Health Care
(ACSQHC) standards. The Committee has developed a small
working group including RANZCO staff members to develop
Version 2 of the NUCLEUS Program which is scheduled for
release on 1 January 2019. Furthermore, a new suite of
documents and resources have been created for New Zealand
in line with the New Zealand specific standards.
To ensure that RANZCO develops clinical practice guidelines
consistent with current best practice in Australia, New
Zealand and internationally, the Clinical Standards Committee
has provided ongoing advice on the existing and proposed
guideline development. The Committee also commenced a
review of a large number of RANZCO guidelines, the updates
of which will be finalised in the new financial year. The
Committee also provided ongoing advice about a number of
different standards-related issues, including on state-based
regulations for standards of procedures done in consultation
rooms, and other related matters. The Committee also
continued to advise the College on matters relating to visual
standards for driving, via the Visual Standards Sub-Committee
to the Clinical Standards Committee. This included advocacy
around driving with bioptic lenses, and a submission to the
review of eyesight testing procedures for NSW drivers.

RANZCO’s Leadership Development Program (LDP), supported
by the Leadership Development Committee, continued its
work in developing high quality leaders in ophthalmology
and within the College by providing training, support and
networking events for Fellows. Over the past year, the
Leadership Development Committee provided direction to
eight RANZCO Fellows for their individual projects as part of
the RANZCO LDP. Funding was also secured for an inaugural
RANZCO LDP alumni event that was hosted at the 2017
Annual Scientific Meeting held in Perth.
Ensuring high standards in each area of ophthalmology,
RANZCO’s special interest groups continue to bring together
ophthalmologists with a special interest in a particular
condition or area of the eye. These special interest groups
advise on policy relating to their special interest areas, review
and disseminate research and information resources, and
provide RANZCO with expert advice on relevant practice
issues. Over the year, these groups have also fed into policy
development, advocacy activities and media engagement,
ensuring that the messages that RANZCO puts out represent
the highest standards of practice in each specialist area.

NUCLEUS
PROGRAM

NUCLEUS
PROGRAM
To make sure that our Fellows and their staff
adhere to best practice professional standards
when treating patients, over 2017-18 the
Professional Standards Committee has reviewed,
updated and amended the NUCLEUS Program
to reflect changes in the National Safety and
Quality Health Service (NSQHS) Standards
on which it is based. Version 2 of the NSQHS
Standards was released in November 2017 and
to reflect its changes Version 2 of the NUCLEUS
Program is scheduled for release on 1 January
2019 after being assessed against the revised
NSQHS standards.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY FIVE:
COLLEGE ACTIVITIES

We will deliver superior service and value to our members, partners and
stakeholders to ensure ongoing sustainability.
One of the main priorities for the last financial year was to
ensure RANZCO’s structure, human resources and processes
are designed to effectively support our strategic direction
and member needs. This involved the rationalisation of teams
to be the most efficient we can be and a renewed focus on
delivering the highest quality ophthalmic education and
training, including developing more support for trainees
and supervisors. To further this aim, we have promoted
the support services available to trainees and supervisors
through College communication channels and by developing
educational resources for those facing difficulties. Overall,
RANZCO staff have been instrumental in delivering projects
that are specific to our members’ needs and according to the
objectives set out in our Strategic Plan.
The College has been working hard to ensure that it
continues to provide a supportive and equitable place of
employment and education for all members and staff, and
to promote and embed diversity and inclusion principles
into clinical practice to better serve the needs of patients
from diverse backgrounds. In pursuit of these aims, the
Diversity and Inclusion Committee has led a number of
initiatives throughout the year including co-sponsoring
the Ocular Trauma: Secrets and Lies Symposium during
RANZCO’S 49th Annual Scientific Congress. The session
involved engaging discussions on sensitive issues such as
child abuse and neglect, domestic violence and the role of
the ophthalmologist in the management of trauma in rural
and remote Australia. The Committee also conducted the
Case for Inclusion Symposium, which discussed topics such as
gender equity, Indigenous inclusion and proposed changes
to the RANZCO VTP selection process to improve access to
ophthalmic education for rural and Indigenous applicants.
To meet the needs of patients from diverse backgrounds, the
Committee has responded to the Medical Board of Australia’s
draft revised guidelines Sexual Boundaries in the doctorpatient relationship and provided feedback on a consultation
draft from the Migrant and Refugee Women's Health
Partnership, Culturally responsive clinical practice: Working with
people from migrant and refugee backgrounds. As part of our
commitment to incorporating diversity and inclusion practices
at all levels of the College, we have continued to collaborate
with other healthcare professionals including the Australian
Orthopaedic Association (AOA) which invited Dr Catherine
Green AO, RANZCO’s Dean of Education, to participate in a
panel discussion at the AOA Diversity Strategy Workshop
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in September 2017. The College has also been active in
promoting diversity and inclusion principles by publishing
numerous articles in the College’s quarterly publication,
Eye2Eye, covering issues such as: how to achieve greater
work-life balance, the role of language in clinical practice and
updates on what the College is doing on the diversity and
inclusion front.
The College has also continued its project on developing
referral pathways to ensure the most effective and efficient
patient care and to improve health outcomes for people
across Australia and New Zealand. In New Zealand, RANZCO
Fellow Dr Dianne Sharp worked with AMD sub-speciality
groups to develop guidelines specific to the New Zealand
population and to address recent ophthalmology waiting list
backlogs affecting DHBs across the country. The guidelines
provide an evidence based resource for optometrists, GPs
and other health care professionals that outlines referral and
treatment best practice for managing the care of patients
with, or suspected of having, AMD.

RANZCO MUSEUM
The RANZCO Museum has continued to share the fascinating
history of the College and ophthalmology in general with
regular contributions to the College’s quarterly publication
Eye2Eye and through the Museum exhibition which is on
display during Congress each year. During 2017, the annual
exhibition featured a magnificent collection provided by
Prof Ian McAllister featuring displays on the evolution of the
ophthalmoscope, optometers and 19th Century teaching. The
Museum’s curator Dr David Kaufman and Prof Ian McAllister
also hosted a lunchtime lecture for Senior and Retired Fellows
during Congress, sharing their insights on the evolution of
design and function of the ophthalmoscope.
Over the reporting period, notable donations to the Museum’s
collection included the history of SVH Sydney and Lloyd
Cahills war memories.
In other developments, the Museum migrated its archives
database over to the museum management system EMu.
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Over the 2017-2018 year, ORIA went through a number of
significant changes including the retirement of ORIA’s long
serving Executive Officer, Anne Dunn Snape, and the shifting
of administrative responsibilities from her to the RANZCO staff.
This move was precipitated by a desire to increase efficiencies
and drive activities. This has so far been an effective and efficient
move, with a smooth handover and transition which has freed
up the ORIA Board to focus on the strategic direction of the
organisation to ensure the best possible support for ophthalmic
research, thereby improving outcomes for eye patients.
Support for eye research is critically needed as there are many
unmet patient needs and eye researchers are struggling to find
solutions as the costs of research increase and funds available
for ophthalmic research are limited. ORIA has made changes
this year to run the organisation more efficiently. For example,
you will notice we are no longer printing an annual report rather
it will be available electronically, and we are increasingly using
teleconferencing rather than face to face meetings. As a charity,
ORIA faces a difficult financial time in which funding is very
tight and addressing this will be a focus in the future. Obviously,
fundraising is one part of this and so we encourage everyone
to support research through ORIA. ORIA continues to engage
with RANZCO to ensure that donations support eye research
rather than administration, which is now largely in the hands of
RANZCO.
This year, ORIA awarded over half a million dollars in grants, with
12 research projects receiving vital ORIA support. These projects
cover a wide range of important topics including gene therapy,
the atlas for the human retina, corneal epithelial regeneration
and eye-drops to treat short-sightedness in children.
ORIA grants, both current and historical, couldn’t be
awarded without the support of our generous donors. While
all donations, of any amount, are welcomed and greatly
appreciated, ongoing donations allow ORIA to better plan
for the future of research funding. This year we received new
commitments for ongoing funding from both the Perth Eye
Hospital and the Australian and New Zealand Society of Retinal
Specialists (ANZSRS). This joins our ongoing funding from The
Richard and Ina Humbly Foundation, the Anselmi Estate, Ivy
May Stephenson, the Estate of the late Gladys Clare Renesson
and the Estate of the late Mary H Tilden, which support named
grants each year. The RANZCO NSW Branch also donated
generously this year and a RANZCO NSW Branch named grant
was awarded.
I would like to thank all of our donors, past and present, without
whom none of ORIA’s important work would be possible.
Thank you also to the ORIA Board, the ORIA Research Advisory
Committee, our volunteer reviewers, the RANZCO staff and all
ORIA members for their hard work and continued support over
the year.

GRANTS

THE OPHTHALMIC RESEARCH
INSTITUTE OF AUSTRALIA (ORIA)

12 AWARDED
$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$584,000 IN TOTAL

During 2016,
ORIA received
51 applications
from Australian
researchers for
funding in 2017/18

All projects were
peer reviewed
by two external
experts

$
ORIA awarded
12 grants during
the year.

The total amount
provided for
medical eye
research by ORIA
and its supporters
is $584,000.
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SAVE SIGHT SOCIETY OF
NEW ZEALAND

OPHTHALMOLOGY NEW
ZEALAND (ONZ)

The 2017 Save Sight Society Meeting was held on 15
September at the Langham Hotel in Auckland. The theme of
the meeting was The eye through the ages. The meeting was a
huge success featuring something for everyone, with over
160 delegates attending and participating from a range of
disciplines including nurses, optometrists, ophthalmologists
and vision scientists. This event raised approximately $20,000 in
profits, which will go towards funding research and education in
New Zealand.

“I think it all comes down to motivation.
If you really want to do something, you
will work hard for it.” - Sir Edmund Hillary.

The Save Sight Society was previously donated a large
collection of eye images from Emeritus Professor John Parr.
USB drives containing the best 350 images (selected by A/
Prof Bruce Hadden) were labelled and branded as the John Parr
Image Collection and offered in return for donations with all
proceeds going to the Save Sight Society of New Zealand.
The Retina 2018 international conference was held in
Auckland on 10 and 11 February 2018, bringing together some
of the world’s foremost retinal scientists and clinicians along with
the global leaders in patient advocacy and peer support. The
Save Sight Society NZ was a silver sponsor for this event.
The Save Sight Society Annual Conference in 2018 will
be held in Nelson with the theme of the meeting being
Challenging eye care: beyond the major urban centres.

KEY FUNDING/RESEARCH
PROJECTS FOR 2018

$25,000
Save Sight
Society NZ
Research Grant
Molecular
characterization
in an unsolved
inherited
Optic Atrophy
cohort using a
candidate gene
approach.
Awarded to
A/Prof Andrea
Vincent et al.

$25,000 $5,000
Save Sight
Society NZ
Research
Grant

Heather
Mackintosh
Junior
Research
Grant

A new vision
for healing
corneal
wounds.

Screening for
keratoconus
in Down
syndrome.

Awarded to
Prof Trevor
Sherwin et al.

Awarded to
Joyce Mathan
et al.
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ONZ has worked hard over the last financial year to
represent its members, both within the public and private
health systems, and to deal with what is becoming an
increasingly untenable situation with health insurers.
The ONZ had some key achievements too, such as the
two workshop forums that are now a staple part of our
calendar; the Clinical Leaders Forum and The Other Matters
– ONZ Business Forum.
The Clinical Leaders Forum was held in March 2018 in
Wellington and the Other Matters was held in May at the
same time as the RANZCO New Zealand Branch meeting.
Both meetings continue to be well attended and have
good feedback on the content.
But the year has been overshadowed by a continual
push from a monopoly health insurer to drop prices and
an intrusion into clinical autonomy from that insurer by
refusing to reimburse for anaesthetists in cataract surgery.
Some smaller private clinics are feeling this pressure, and
the impact of it on their viability cannot be overstated.
Due to the confidential nature of contracting, and the
commercial legal framework of New Zealand, ONZ is in
many ways limited in what it can do to support clinicians
but it is motivated and working hard to assist members.
Some of our actions have included ensuring that the
insurer concerned has a relationship with us, as we
represent all members, in an effort to limit what has been
a “divide and conquer” strategy from that insurer. We are
in the process of setting up clinical subcommittees as a
resource for that insurer. We have also identified a national
legal resource as a repository of information to assist in
individual contract negotiations, but the more substantial
effort has gone into changing our health insurance
framework to allow competition and reform. To that end
ONZ attended a submission into the Insurance Contracts
Law Review in July, the outcomes of which we are still
awaiting.
We have noted an increase in membership, as the
ophthalmologists in New Zealand get behind our work
and in 2018/19 we intend to continue representing the
members’ interests, both with the insurer and, if necessary,
in a much more public forum.

THE AUSTRALIAN SOCIETY OF
OPHTHALMOLOGY (ASO)
Over the past financial year, the ASO has continued to
strengthen its position as a lobbying force, advocating
on issues affecting its members and their patients. One
of the major campaigns for the year was the ‘Switch’
campaign which aimed to educate consumers about
their ability to switch insurers if they aren’t satisfied
with the insurance policy they are paying for. As part of
the campaign the ASO collaborated with other patient
advocacy groups including AMA NSW, COPS, ASOS, ASA
& ANZAOMS to launch this campaign.

KEY
ACHIEVEMENTS
FOR 2017-2018

The society also lobbied the Federal Health Minister
to put a stop to this inappropriate, managed carestyle activity by insurers. As part of its advocacy work,
ASO lodged nine submissions on issues ranging from
value and affordability of private health insurance to
mandatory reporting in the 2017/18 financial year.
The ASO continued to run its annual Advocacy and
Practice Skills Workshop, which was held on 28
October 2017. The workshop was focused on helping
ophthalmologists fine tune their practices and keeping
them informed and engaged in medico-politics from an
ophthalmology viewpoint. Another regular feature in
the ASO’s calendar of events is the ASO Business Skills
Expo, which was held in Sydney from 12-13 May 2018.
The expo was designed to deliver tailored business skills
and practice insights to ophthalmologists throughout
Australia.

•

ASO membership has grown significantly
in the past 12 months, which we believe
reflects the strong work we are doing as a
representative organisation and advocacy
group. The goal for 2018/19 is to continue to
build on this growth and champion the issues
affecting ophthalmologists and their patients.

•

ASO has been active in the media, appearing
regularly across television, print and radio.
The society has also further strengthened its
presence on social media.

•

We have strengthened existing relationships
and forged valuable new connections. Some
of these include those with: the AMA, the
Council of Procedural Specialists, Australian
Society of Anaesthetists, Consumers Health
Forum, Glaucoma Australia, MDFA and
Vision 2020.

•

We continue to assist members with issues
ranging from contracts, succession planning
and marketing, through to medicare billing
and interpretation, communicating with
patients, dispute resolution and dealing with
private health insurers.

•

Our members are kept up to date on all ASO
work and key information via our various
modes of member communication.
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BOARD
President – A/Prof Mark Daniell
Vice President – Dr Diana Semmonds
Honorary Treasurer – Dr Heather Mack

Western Australia
Dr Jane Khan
Dr Steven Wiffen
Dr Robert Paul

Censor-in-Chief – Dr Justin Mora

Queensland

Dr Russell Bach (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Daniel Black

Dr Diana Conrad (from 28/10/2017)
Dr Arthur Karagiannis (until 28/10/2017)
Dr Sam Lerts
Prof Nigel Morlet
Dr Neil Murray
Dr Grant Raymond (from 28/10/2017)
A/Prof Nitin Verma
Dr Christine Younan (from 28/10/2017)

COUNCIL

Dr Oben Candemir
Dr Stephen Godfrey (from 05/08/2017)
Dr Russell Perrin (from 24/03/18)
Dr Rowan Porter (until 24/03/2018)
New Zealand
Dr Brian Kent-Smith
Dr Stephen Ng
Dr Keith Small
Appointed
Dr Kenneth Chan (from 30/10/2017)

New South Wales

Prof John Crompton (from 28/10/2017)

A/Prof Andrew Chang		

Dr Stuart Graham (until 29/10/2017)

Dr Diana Farlow (from 28/10/2017)

Dr Emmanuel Gregory (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Clare Fraser (from 28/10/2017)

Dr John Kennedy (from 01/06/2018)

Dr Robert Griffits		

Prof Peter McCluskey

Dr Tasha Micheli (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Michael Merriman

Dr Con Moshegov (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Stephen Ng

Dr Daya Sharma (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Nisha Sachdev (until 30/10/2017)

Dr Andrew White (from 28/10/2017)

Dr Esra Sanli (from 12/03/2018)

Dr Christine Younan (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Richard Stawell (until 01/11/2017)

Dr Alina Zeldovich (from 28/10/2017)

Dr Peter Sumich

Victoria

Dr Stephanie Watson (from 29/10/2017)

A/Prof Andrew Crawford (until 03/03/2018)

EX-OFFICIOS

Dr Lewis Levitz

Dr Ashish Agar

Dr Kira Michalova

Dr Russell Bach (until 28/10/2017)

Dr Leisha Riddington

Dr Anthony Bennett Hall

Dr David van der Straaten (from 03/03/2018)

Dr Diana Conrad

Dr Jonathan Yeoh (from 03/03/2018)

A/Prof Mark Daniell

Tasmania
A/Prof Paul McCartney
South Australia

Dr Arthur Karagiannis (until 28/10/2017)
Dr Sam Lerts
Dr Heather Mack
Dr Justin Mora

Dr Peter Cooper (until 18/06/2018)

Prof Nigel Morlet

Dr Peter Fleming (from 18/06/2018)

Dr Neil Murray

Dr Timothy Gray

Dr Grant Raymond

Dr Genevieve Oliver (from 18/06/2018)

Dr Sukhpal Sandhu

Dr Grant Raymond (until18/06/2018)

Dr Esra Sanli
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Dr Diana Semmonds
A/Prof Nitin Verma

SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS

Dr Christine Younan (from 28/10/2017)

Australian and New Zealand Glaucoma Society
(ANZGS)

BRANCHES

Chair – A/Prof Anne Brooks

New South Wales
Chair – Dr Robert Griffits (from 09/10/2017)

Australian and New Zealand Society of Retinal
Specialists (ANZSRS)

Chair – A/Prof Andrew Chang (until 09/10/2017)

Chair – Dr Jennifer Arnold

Honorary Secretary – Dr Daya Sharma (until 09/10/2017)
Honorary Secretary – Dr Alina Zeldovich (from 09/10/2017)

Australian and New Zealand Cornea Society
(ANZCS)

Honorary Treasurer – Dr Christine Younan (until 09/10/2017)

Chair – Prof Charles McGhee

Honorary Treasurer – Dr Nisha Sachdev (from 09/10/2017)

Chair – Prof Gerard Sutton

Victoria

Australia and New Zealand Society of Ophthalmic
Plastic Surgery (ANZSOPS)

Chair – Dr David Van Der Straaten (from 03/03/2018)
Chair – Dr Andrew Crawford (until 03/03/2018)
Honorary Secretary – Dr Xavier Fagan (from 03/03/2018)
Honorary Secretary – Dr David Van Der Straaten

Chair – A/Prof Adam Gajdatsy

Neuro-ophthalmology Society of Australia (NOSA)
Chair – Dr John Crompton

(until 31/03/2018)

Ocular Oncology

Honorary Treasurer – Dr Lewis Levitz

Chair – Dr Sunil Warrier

Queensland

Paediatrics

Chair – Dr Stephen Godfrey (from 07/08/2017)

Chair – A/Prof James Elder

Chair – Dr Russell Perrin (until 07/08/2017)
Honorary Secretary – Dr Mark Chiang

Australian and New Zealand Strabismus Society
(ANZSS)

Honorary Treasurer – Dr Oben Candemir

Chair – Dr Shuan Dai

South Australia

Chair – Dr Craig Donaldson

Chair – Dr Mark Chehade (from 19/09/2017)

Uveitis

Chair – Dr Garry Davis (until 19/09/2017)

Chair – Dr Lyndell Lim

Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer
– Dr Stewart Lake (until 19/09/2017)

GROUPS

Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer
– Dr Matthew Little (from 19/09/2017))

Chair – Dr Kenneth Chan (From 28/10/2017)

Western Australia

Dr Andrea Ang
Dr Thomas Cunneen
Dr Narmadai Deva
Dr Shane Durkin
Dr Jennifer Fan Gaskin
Dr Jesse Gale
Dr Zoe Gao
Dr Todd Goodwin
Dr Chih-Hung (Nelson) Kuo (from 01/05/2018)
Dr Matthew Little
Dr Nathan Sachdev
Dr Nisha Sachdev (until 28/10/2017)
Dr Nathan Walker (until 01/10/2017)

Chair – Dr Nigel Morlet
Honorary Secretary – Dr David P De La Hunty
Honorary Treasurer – Dr Thomas Cunneen

Tasmania
Chair – A/Prof Paul McCartney
Honorary Secretary – Dr Andrew Traill
Honorary Treasurer- Dr Andrew Jones

New Zealand
Chair – Dr Brian Kent-Smith
Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer
– Dr Andrea Vincent
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Younger Fellows’ Advisory Group
Deputy Chair – Dr Chameen Samarawickrama

Senior and Retired Fellows’ Group

Ophthalmology New Zealand

Chair - Dr Emmanuel Gregory (until 28/10/2017)

Chair – Dr Michael Merriman

Chair – Prof John Crompton (from 28/10/2017)

Ophthalmic Research Institute of Australia

Women in Ophthalmology Advisory Group

Chair – Prof Stephanie Watson

Co-Chair – Dr Faye Walker (until 28/10/18)

Save Sight Society of New Zealand Inc

Chair – Dr Genevieve Oliver (from 28/10/2017, Co-Chair until

Chair – Dr Dipika Patel

28/10/18)

COMMITTEES

Dr Madeleine Adams
Dr Tani Brown
Dr Jayne Camuglia
Dr Caroline Catt
Dr Katie Chen
Dr Elaine Chong
A/Prof Deb Colville
Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer
Dr Rosie Dawkins
Dr Zoe Gao
Dr Vinithra Kumar
Dr Lyndell Lim
Dr Kerrie Meades
Dr Michelle Sun
Dr Andrea Vincent
Dr Alannah Walsh
Prof Stephanie Watson
Dr Jaclyn White

Qualification and Education Committee (QEC)
Chair – Dr Justin Mora
Dr Andrea Ang (from 01/02/2018)
Dr Andrew Apel
Dr Kristin Bell
Dr Jacqueline Beltz
Dr Kathryn Billing
Dr Stephen Cains (until 30/04/2018)
Dr Kenneth Chan (from 31/07/2017)
Dr Leanne Cheung
Dr Stephen Colley (from 01/02/2018)
Prof Max Conway
Dr Craig Donaldson (until 30/04/2018)
Prof Glen Gole
Dr Timothy Gray
Dr Catherine Green
Dr I-Van Ho (from 01/05/2018)
Dr Stephen Jones

Practice Managers’ Advisory Group

Prof Geoffrey Lam

Co-Chair – Mrs Kharissa Cain

Dr Robert McDonald (from 01/05/2018)

Co-Chair – Mrs Lucy Peters

Dr Michael Merriman

Mrs Deborah Boyd

Dr Maria Moon

Mrs Michelle De Guia

Dr Ainsley Morris

Ms Gail Drennan

Dr Neil Murray

Mrs Ingrid Durkins

Dr Con Petsoglou (from 01/05/2018)

Ms Peggy Ekeledo-Smith

Dr Sukhpal Sandhu

Mrs Lisa Hartley

Dr Weng Sehu (until 01/05/2018)

Ms Judith Parnell

Dr Joanne Sims (until 31/07/2017)

Mrs Alison Pennington

Dr Andrew Thompson

Mrs Lara Sullivan

Dr Mark Walland

Professors’ Group

Dr Sunil Warrier

Chair – Prof Peter McCluskey

AFFILIATED ORGANISATIONS

Curriculum Committee
Chair - Dr Catherine Green
Deputy Chair – Dr Justin Mora

Australian Society of Ophthalmologists

Dr Max Conway

President – Dr Peter Sumich

Dr Maria Moon
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Dr Esra Sanli

Ophthalmic Basic Competencies and Knowledge
(OBCK)

Dr Andrew Thompson

Chair – Dr Neil Murray

Directors of Training

Dr Andrea Ang (from 12/02/2018)

Dr Jacqueline Beltz

Dr Gayatri Banerjee

Dr Kathryn Billing

Dr Malcolm Capon

Dr Kenneth Chan

Dr Stuart Carroll (until 01/12/2017)

Dr Steve Colley (until 01/01/2018)

Dr Caroline Catt (from 12/02/2018)

Dr I-Van Ho (until 01/02/2018)

Dr Rajeev Chalasani

Dr Sunil Warrier

Dr Elsie Chan

QEC SUB-COMMITTEES

A/Prof Celia Chen

Dr Neil Murray

Examination Boards
Ophthalmic Sciences
Chair – Dr Andrew Thompson
Dr Kayvan Arashvand
Dr Chandrashekar Balachandran
Dr Paula Berdoukas
Dr Jean-Louis De Sousa
Dr John Dickson
Dr Rohan Essex (until 01/10/2017)
Dr Brent Gaskin (until 21/10/2017)
Dr Magdalena Guzowski
Dr Peter Hadden (until 01/12/2017)

Dr Jennifer Fan Gaskin (from 12/02/2018)
Dr Michelle Gajus
Dr Tess Huynh
Dr Andrew Kaines
Dr Hema Karthik (from 12/02/2018)
Dr Sam Lerts (until 30/05/2018)
Dr Ridia Lim (until 30/05/2018)
Dr Patrick Lockie (until 30/05/2018)
Dr Raymond Loh (from 12/02/2018)
Dr Rohan Merani
Dr Nisha Sachdev
Dr Daya Sharma

Dr James Jabbour

Dr Kiran Sindhu

Dr Jane Khan

Dr Charles Su

Dr Anne Lee

Dr Laurence Sullivan (until 01/12/2017)

Dr Patrick Lockie

Dr Tu Tran (until 30/05/2018)

Dr Jed Lusthaus

Dr Gurmit Uppal

Prof Paul McMenamin

Dr Anton Van Heerde

Dr Randev Mendis

Dr David Wechsler (until 30/05/2018)

Dr Robert Paul

Dr Nishantha Wijesinghe (from 12/02/2018)

Dr Vivek Phakey

Dr Tse Wing Yeung (from 12/02/2018)

Dr Daniel Polya

Dr Christine Younan

Dr Mark Saunders
Dr Daya Sharma
Dr Shanel Sharma
Dr Kiran Sindhu
Dr Simon Skalicky

Dr Sophia Zagora (from 12/02/2018)

Ophthalmic Pathology
Chair – Prof Max Conway
Dr Svetlana Cherepanoff

Dr Brent Skippen

Dr Vivek Chowdhury

Dr Mark Steiner

Dr Tom Dodd

Dr Charles Su

Dr Diane Kenwright

Dr Dzung Vu

Dr Nikhil Kumar

Dr Mark Whiting

Dr CesarSalinas-La Rosa

Dr Tse Wing Yeung

Dr Sureka Thiagalingam
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RANZCO Advanced Clinical Examination (RACE)

Dr Vinithra Kumar (until 01/03/2018)

Chair - Dr Maria Moon

Dr Tow Lim (until 25/11/2017)

Dr Maged Atalla

Prof Philip Polkinghorne

Dr Joanna Black

Dr Chameen Samarawickrama (from 26/11/2017)

Dr Mark Chehade

A/Prof Nitin Verma (until 31/08/2017)

Dr Diana Conrad

New Zealand IMG Committee

Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer (until 31/05/2018)
Dr Craig Donaldson (until 8/05/2018)
Dr Anastasius Economos (until 31/05/2018)
Dr Sean Every
Dr Anna Galanopoulos
Dr Trevor Gin
Dr Fraser Imrie

Chair – Dr Ainsley Morris
Dr Sam Kain
Dr Rodney Keillor
Dr Keith Maslin
Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Bheemanagouda Patil

Prof Geoffrey Lam

Prof Philip Polkinghorne

Dr Peter Meagher

Trainee Progression Committee

Dr Andrew Narita (from 01/01/2017)

Chair – Dr Stephen Jones

Dr Stephen Ohlrich

Dr Stephen Best

Dr David Pendergrast (from 01/01/2018)

Dr Stephanie Young

Dr Rebecca Stack
Prof Gerard Sutton (until 31/05/2018)
Dr Kimberley Tan (until 31/05/2018)
Dr Simon Taylor
Dr Tu Tran
Dr Sanjeewa Wickremasinghe

Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
Committee
Chair – Dr Sukhpal Sandhu
Dr Andrea Ang

A/Prof Mei-Ling Tay-Kearney
Selection Board
Chair - Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Kristin Bell
Dr Kathryn Billing
Dr Caroline Clarke
Dr Matthew Cranstoun
Dr Catherine Green
Dr Weng Sehu

Dr Guy Bylsma

Dr Mark Mattiussi

Dr Jason Cassar

Prof Peter McCluskey

Dr Jennifer Fan Gaskin

Dr Justin Mora

Dr Kolin Foo (until 20/07/2017)

Dr Kristopher Rallah-Baker

Dr Jesse Gale (from 25/08/2017)

Dr Mei-Ling Tay-Kearney

Dr Aanchal Gupta (from 25/05/2017)

Trainee Representative Group

Dr Sam Lerts (until 20/07/2017)
Dr Alok Sharma

Australian SIMG Committee
Chair – Dr Stephen Cains (until 01/04/2018)
Acting Chair - Dr Ainsley Morris (from 01/04/2018)
Dr Malcolm Capon
Dr Mark Chiang
Dr William Glasson (until 11/06/2018)
Dr Joshua Hann
Mr John Horner
Dr Susith Kulasekara (from 26/11/2017)

Chair – Dr Katja Ullrich (until 11/3/2018)
Chair – Dr Esra Sanli (from 12/03/2018)
Dr Matthew Cranstoun
Dr Michael Brown (until 31/1/2018)
Dr CheeFoong Chong (until 31/1/2018)
Dr Samuel Dance (until 31/1/2018)
Dr Nicholas Toalster (until 31/1/2018)
Dr Nathan Wong (until 31/1/2018)
Dr Kate Leahy (from 1/2/2018)
Dr Shyalle Kahawita (from 1/2/2018)
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Dr James English (from 1/2/2018)
Dr Jamie Chew (from 1/2/2018)
Dr Alistair Papali’i-Curtin (from 1/2/2018)
Training Post Inspectorate Committee
Chair – Prof Glen Gole
Prof John Crompton (from 26/05/2018)
A/Prof Mark Elder (until 01/11/2018)
Dr David Kaufman
Dr Wendy Marshman (from 24/11/2017)
Dr Brian Sloan (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Richard Stawell
Dr David Tamblyn

Dr Justin Mora
Dr Neil Murray
Dr Brian Sloan
Dr Sophia Zagora (from 27/02/2018)

Leadership Development Committee
Chair – Dr Catherine Green
Dr Shenton Chew (from 15/02/2018)
Prof David Mackey
Prof Stephanie Watson (from 15/02/2018)
Dr Christine Younan

Medicare Advisory Committee
Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh

A/Prof Mei-Ling Tay-Kearney (from 13/11/2017)

Dr Ashish Agar (from 1/12/2017)

COMMITTEES – ADVOCACY AND
AWARENESS

A/Prof Ross Benger (until 01/11/2017)

Dr Clayton Barnes
Dr Zoe Gao (from 1/12/2017)

Australian and New Zealand Eye Foundation ANZEF

Dr William Glasson (until 01/11/2017)

Chair – Dr John Kennedy

Dr Alex Hunyor

Dr Stephen Best

Dr Rohan Merani

Dr Clare Fraser

Dr Allan Rosenberg

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Eye Health
Committee
Co-Chair – Dr Ashish Agar
Co-Chair – A/Prof Angus Turner

Dr Nisha Sachdev (from 1/12/2017)
Dr Michael Steiner
Dr Peter Sumich
Dr Robyn Troutbeck (from 1/12/2017)

Dr Antony Bedggood (until 01/03/2018)
Dr Kirstin Bell (from 01/03/2018)
Dr J Ben Clark (from 23/08/2017)
Dr Shane Durkin (from 23/08/2017)
Dr Andrew Foster (from 1/3/2018)
Dr William Glasson (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Todd Goodwin (from 01/03/2018)
Dr Graham Hay-Smith (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Tim Henderson
Dr Michael Karpa (from 01/03/2018)
Dr Mark Loane
Dr Damien Louis (11/09/2017)
Dr Rowan Porter
Dr Hessom Razavi
Prof Hugh Taylor

Māori and Pasifika Health Committee

International Development Committee

Dr Luke Maccheron (until 31/01/2018)

Chair – Dr Anthony Bennett Hall

Dr James McAlister

Dr Garry Brian

Dr Ju-Lee Ooi (until 31/01/2018)

A/Prof Susan Carden (from 27/02/2018)

Dr Nathan Sachdev

A/Prof Deb Colville

Dr Shanel Sharma (01/02/2018)

Dr Catherine Green

Dr Brighu Swamy

Dr Richard Hart (until 31/01/2018)

Dr Graham Wilson
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Chair - Dr Antony Bedggood (from 19/03/2018)
Dr William Cunningham (from 19/03/2018)
Dr Edward Hutchins (from 19/03/2018)
Dr Eugene Michael (from 19/03/2018)
Dr Alistair Papali'i-Curtin (from 19/03/2018)
Dr John Rawstron (from 19/03/2018)

Public Health Committee
Chair – Prof Stephanie Watson (until 20/02/2018)
Chair – Dr Jane Khan (from 20/02/2018)
Dr Joanne Dondey
Dr John Downie
Dr Edwina Eade (01/02/2018)
Dr Shweta Kaushik (01/02/2018)

Therapeutics Committee
Chair – A/Prof Andrew Symons
A/Prof Penelope Allen
Dr Georgia Cleary
Prof Mark Gillies
A/Prof Michael Goggin
Dr Alexandros Ioannidis
Dr John Males
Dr Ainsley Morris
Dr Keith Ong
Prof Stephanie Watson (until 05/03/2018)

Workforce Committee
Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh
Dr Andrea Ang (until 30/10/2017)
Dr Xavier Fagan
Dr Zoe Gao (from 31/10/2017)
Dr Tim Henderson
Dr Sam Lerts (until 31/10/2017)
Dr Olivia Macvie
Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Justin Mora
Dr Josephine Richards
Dr Alok Sharma (from 31/10/2017)
Dr Timothy Steele
Dr Deepa Taranath

COMMITTEES – MEMBER
ENGAGEMENT
CEO Journal Editorial Board
Editors-in-Chief:
A/Prof Salmaan Al-Qureshi
Professor Robert Casson

Associate Editors:
A/Prof Susan Carden
Professor Dennis Lam
Professor Charles McGhee
Professor Peter Savino

Section Editors:
Glaucoma
A/Prof Anne Brooks
A/Prof Paul Chew
Dr Carlos Gustavo De Moraes
Prof Stuart Graham
Dr Nathan Kerr
Dr Jonathan Myers

Neuro-Ophthalmology
Prof Peter Savino
Anterior Segment
Dr Jacqueline Beltz
A/Professor Nick Di Girolamo
Dr Beeran Meghpara (from 19/02/2018)
Dr Jay Meyer
A/Prof Dipika Patel
Dr Srinivas Rao
Prof Rasik Vajpayee (until 07/05/2018)
Prof Stephanie Watson (until 16/10/2017)
Cataract
A/Prof Chandra Bala
A/Prof Michael Goggin
A/Prof Tim Roberts
Visual Sciences
Dr Chandra Balaratnasingam
A/Prof Nigel Barnett
A/Prof Trevor Sherwin
Dr John Wood
Paediatrics and Strabismus
A/Prof Susan Carden
Dr William Good
Uveitis
Dr Claire Hooper
A/Prof Lyndell Lim
Dr Christine Younan
Posterior Segment
A/Prof Rohan Essex
A/Prof Jolly Gilhotra
A/Prof Timothy Lai
Orbital and Plastics
Mr Raman Malhotra
Dr Stephen Ng (left board 15/05/2018)
Prof Tim Sullivan
Epidemiology
Dr Ching-Yu Cheng
Dr John Landers
Dr Cathy McCarty
Medical Retina
Dr Aman Chandra
A/Prof Andrew Chang
Dr Xavier Fagan
A/Prof Samantha Fraser-Bell
Dr Sanj Wickremasinghe
Genetics
Dr Kathryn Burdon
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A/Prof Alex Hewitt
A/Prof Andrea Vincent
Ocular Oncology
Dr Ashwin Mallipatna (from 06/11/2017)
Dr Daniel McKay (from 06/11/2017)
A/Prof R Max Conway (until 18/10/2017)
Prof Bertil Damato (until 28/10/2017)
Dr Carol Shields (until 31/10/2017)
Ophthalmic Pharmacotherapy
Prof Raid Alany
Biostatistics
Dr Greg Gamble
CPD
Dr Sukhpal Singh Sandhu

Managing Editor:
Victoria Cartwright

Awards Committee
Dr David Andrews
Dr Mark Daniell
Dr Diana Semmonds

Nominations Committee
Chair – A/Prof Mark Daniell
Dr Brad Horsburgh
Dr Justin Mora
Dr Diana Semmonds

Scientific Program Committee – Review Panel
Dr Andrea Ang
Dr Elsie Chan
Dr Colin Clement
Dr Amy Cohn
Dr Shuan Dai
A/Prof James Elder
Dr Clare Fraser
A/Prof Samantha Fraser-Bell
A/Prof Adrian Fung (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Graham Hay-Smith (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Alex Hewitt
Dr Mitchell Lawlor (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Ridia Lim
Prof William Morgan (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Brett O'Donnell
Dr Jeremy Raiter (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Diana Semmonds
Dr Simon Skalicky
Dr Tim Sullivan (from 01/11/2017)
Prof Gerard Sutton
A/Prof Robert Symons
Dr Mei Hong Tan
A/Prof Nitin Verma
Prof Jie Jin Wang (from 01/11/2017)
Dr Christine Younan

Local Congress Convenors

COMMITTEES – STANDARDS

Dr Fred Chan (Perth 2017)
A/Prof Angus Turner (Perth 2017)
Dr Neil Gehling (Adelaide 2018)

Clinical Standards Committee

Scientific Program Committee – Executive

Dr Daniel Polya

Chair – Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer (until 01/11/2017)
Chair – Dr Christine Younan (from 01/11/2017)
Dr Noel Alpins (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Elsie Chan (from 01/11/2017)
Dr Shuan Dai
A/Prof Mark Daniell
Dr Simon Dean (until 01/11/2017)
A/Prof James Elder
A/Prof Samantha Fraser-Bell
Dr Thomas Hardy (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Ridia Lim (from 01/11/2017)
Prof Charles McGhee (until 01/11/2017)
Dr Brett O'Donnell
Prof Gerard Sutton (from 01/11/2017)
A/Prof Andrew Symons (from 01/11/2017)

Dr Elaine Wong
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Chair – Dr Richard Wolfe
Dr Paul Beaumont

Dr Julian Mazzetti
Dr Robert Buttery
Dr Keith Ong
Dr Adrian Fung

Code of Conduct Committee
Chair – Dr Diana Semmonds
Dr Robert Griffits
Dr Arthur Karagiannis
Dr John Kennedy
Dr Patrick Lockie
Dr Grant Raymond
Dr Neil Sharma
Dr Adam Watson

Human Research Ethics Committee

Diversity and Inclusion Committee

Chair – Prof Mark Radford

Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh

Dr Christopher Basten

Dr Kenneth Chan (from 30/10/2017)

Dr Colin Chan (from 20/06/2018)

Prof John Crompton

Dr Colin Clement

Mrs Judi Gorrie

Dr Malvika Gupta (from 20/06/2018)

Dr Catherine Green

Prof Paul Healey

Dr Emmanuel Gregory (until 30/10/2017)

Dr Alex Hunyor

Dr Sam Lerts

Dr Lyndell Lim (until 31/12/2017)

Dr Justin Mora

Ms Kylie Lloyd

Dr Genevieve Oliver (from 30/10/2017)

Ms Rosemary MacDougal

Dr Nisha Sachdev (until 30/10/2017)

Prof Gerard Moore (from 17/12/2017)

Dr Diana Semmonds

Mr Bradley Sheehan

Dr Nicholas Toalster

Dr Mei Hong Tan (from 20/06/2018)

Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee

Professional Standards Committee

Chair – Dr Heather Mack

Chair – A/Prof Alex BL Hunyor
Dr James Borthwick (until 22/07/2017)
Ms Elizabeth Donkers

Dr Russell Bach (until 02/12/2017)
A/Prof Mark Daniell
Dr Neil Murray (from 02/12/2017)

Dr Michael Fisk

Dr Grant Raymond

Ms Donna Glenn

Membership Committee

Dr Robert Griffits (until 20/07/2017)

Chair - Dr Justin Mora

Dr Graham Hay-Smith

A/Prof Mark Daniell

Ms Moira McInerney
Dr Timothy Nolan
Dr Richard Smith

COMMITTEES – COLLEGE ACTIVITIES
Archives and Museum Committee
Chair – Dr David Kaufman
Mrs Kirsten Campbell
A/Prof Bruce Hadden
Prof Ian McAllister
Mr Jeff Palmer
Prof Mark Radford
Dr Robert Weatherhead

Digital Interface Committee
Chair – Dr Sam Lerts
Prof Mark Gillies
Mr Issam Ibrahim (until 30/6/19)
Mr Nicolas Kott (until 30/6/18)
Dr Ashley Kras
Dr Chandrashan Perera
Dr Richard Sheard
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RANZCO STAFF
Dr David Andrews
Chief Executive Officer
Barry Diletti
Office Manager

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Dr Ruth Ferraro
Deputy CEO and Head of Education

VOCATIONAL TRAINING PROGRAM
(VTP)
Craig Dowling
General Manager - Trainees and Examinations (until 04/18)
General Manager - Vocational Training & Operations

Elaheh Deldarbanadaki (until 30/11/2017)
DBA and Website Developer

POLICY AND PROGRAMS
Gerhard Schlenther
General Manager, Policy & Programs
Dr Guy Gillor
Policy Manager
Gail Van Heerden
Senior Project and Policy Officer
Helen Hunter
NZ Branch Support Officer
Margaret Lum (from 23/10/2017)
Research and Grants Officer

(from 04/18)

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES

Lenn Fay (until 23/02/2018)
Manager, Monitoring and Evaluation

Alex Arancibia Garcia
General Manager, Membership Services

Adam Kiernan (until 15/09/2017)
Manager, E-Learning, Indigenous Health and HREC

Sarah Stedman
Manager - Events & Industry Relationships

Antonelle Clemente-Marquez
Manager, Selection and Assessment (until 04/18)
Senior Manager – Assessments (from 04/18)

Keo Chiem
Receptionist

Anthony Lehner (until 16/03/2018)
Education Coordinator
Carmen Yousif (from 06/03/2018)
Education Coordinator
Bianca Queisser (from 17/04/2018)
Education Coordinator
Diana Russino
Education Coordinator
Felicity Tripolone
Education Coordinator
Jaki King (from 30/04/2018)
Education Project Officer
Kirsty Payne (from 12/03/2018)
Education Project Officer

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Simon Janda
Manager, Professional Development (until 04/18)
Senior Manager - Standards (from 04/18)
Monica Nation
Education Coordinator

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Issam Ibrahim (until 30/06/2018)
Manager, IT
Nicolas Kott (until 30/06/2018)
IT & Business Systems Administrator
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COMMUNICATIONS AND ADVOCACY
Emma Carr
General Manager, Communications
Francine Dutton
Design and Sponsorship Officer
Victoria Cartwright
Managing Editor, CEO
Maheen Imam
Senior Communications Coordinator
Josie Faunce (from 03/07/2017)
Communications Officer

FINANCE
Andrew Young
Financial Controller
Alvin Lau
Finance Assistant
Priska Juventia
Finance Assistant
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
For the year ended 30 June 2018
The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists (“RANZCO” or the “College”) is a company limited by
guarantee and registered with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission.
The College is a member or the Australian Council for International Development (ACFID) and adheres to the ACFID Code of
Conduct.
The Financial Statements presented include all Branches and Special Interest Groups (SIGs) of the College..

Directors (Responsible Entities)
The following directors were in office at the date of this report:
A/Prof Mark Daniell
Dr Diana Semmonds
Dr Heather Mack
Dr Justin Mora
Dr Diana Conrad
A/Prof Nitin Verma AM
Dr Neil Murray
Dr Sam Lerts
Dr Grant Raymond
Prof Nigel Morlet
Dr Christine Younan
Company Secretary
Dr David Andrews
Mrs Alexandra Arancibia Garcia
Charity street address and principal place of business
94 – 98 Chalmers Street
Surry Hills NSW 2010
Auditor
Grant Thornton
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Level 17, 383 Kent Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Correspondence to:
Locked Bag Q800
QVB Post Office
Sydney NSW 1230
T +61 2 8297 2400
F +61 2 9299 4445
E info.nsw@au.gt.com
W www.grantthornton.com.au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
To the Responsible Entities of the The Royal Australian and
New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists
In accordance with the requirements of section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Act 2012, as lead auditor for the audit of The Royal Australian and New Zealand
College of Ophthalmologists for the year ended 30 June 2018, I declare that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of any applicable code of professional
conduct in relation to the audit.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

James Winter
Partner - Audit & Assurance
Sydney, 18 August 2018
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a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
		
		
Revenue

2018
$

2017
$

3,123,151
1,755,894
2,469,910
708,461
299,539
824,397
11,013
64,096
13,602

3,190,690
1,659,325
2,543,679
503,575
14,979
651,633
316,250
73,445
5,629

9,270,063

8,959,205

3,146,474
11,013
785,692
108,894
241,676
281,068
193,433
277,917

3,118,388
316,250
571,157
159,444
261,676
229,636
198,607
272,597

154,416
14,036
187,121
318,944
323,429
184,266
2,103,637
54,328
9,768
193,935

150,650
13,992
36,364
10,000
329,128
105,735
232,186
2,177,039
40,646
32,799
60,392

Total expenditure		

8,590,047

8,316,686

Surplus from operations		

680,016

642,519

796,175

-

2,570,732

-

4,046,923

642,519

Foreign currency exchange loss		
Movement in Available-For-Sale Reserve		
Total other comprehensive income		

(22,927)
672,824
649,897

(1,656)
528,587
526,931

Total comprehensive income for the year		

4,696,820

1,169,450

Membership subscriptions		
Education & training fees		
Scientific Congress 		
Investment & interest income		
Scholarships & travel grants		
Other income from ordinary activities and conferences
Eye Surgeons’ Foundation reimbursement		
Overseas development		
Bequests and donations		
Total revenue		
Expenditure
Employee benefits		
Eye Surgeons’ Foundation costs		
Education, training & other service expenses		
Professional fees		
Depreciation		
Communications expenses		
Property costs		
Travel & accommodation expenses		
Membership fees collected on behalf of The Ophthalmic Research
Institute of Australia		
Contribution to Save Sight Society of New Zealand
Donations – others		
Donations – ASO 		
Donations – Eye Surgeons’ Foundation		
Printing, publicity & public relations		
Projects & conference sponsorship		
Branch expenditure		
Scientific Congress 		
Funds to international programs		
Program support expenses		
Realised fair value movements on disposal of investments

Other income from contributions
Contribution of funds- Eye Surgeons’ Foundation
Contribution of funds – RANZCO Benevolent Fund and
The Trevelyan-Smith Ophthalmology Trust Fund
Net surplus for the year		
Other comprehensive income

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Notes

2018

2017

$

$

7,652,559
298,971
690,693

5,802,932
450,660
670,236

Total current assets		

8,642,223

6,923,828

Non-current		
Available-For-Sale financial assets
6
Property, plant and equipment
7
Inventories
8

14,235,083
8,414,609
20,750

9,486,409
8,543,540
20,750

Total non-current assets		

22,670,442

18,050,699

Total assets		

31,312,665

24,974,527

5,078,964
280,053

3,502,005
152,640

5,359,017

3,654,645

Liabilities 			
Non-current
Provisions
10
-

63,054

Total non-current liabilities		

-

63,054

Total liabilities		

5,359,017

3,717,699

Net assets		

25,953,648

21,256,828

20,683,823
5,269,825

16,659,827
4,597,001

25,953,648

21,256,828

		
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Prepayments

Liabilities
Current
Payables
Provisions

3
4
5

9
10

Total current liabilities		

Funds
Accumulated funds
13
Reserves		
Total funds		

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Notes
		

2018
$

2017
$

Receipts from membership, training fees and operations		

12,486,936

8,058,796

Proceeds from government for the Specialist Training Program		

1,478,039

1,796,628

Payments for the Specialist Training Program		

(1,178,500)

(1,827,804)

Payments to suppliers, awardees and employees		

(7,216,925)

(7,857,699)

Interest income received 		

68,916

-

5,638,466

169,921

Purchase of property, plant and equipment		

(112,745)

-

Net proceeds from/(payments for) investments		

(4,315,639)

(307,436)

Investment income		

639,545

503,575

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities		

(3,788,839)

196,139

Net change in cash and cash equivalents		

1,849,627

366,060

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year		

5,802,932

5,436,872

7,652,559

5,802,932

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

12

Investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

3

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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RESPONSIBLE ENTITIES’ DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Responsible Entities (Directors) of The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists:
1.

2.

The financial statements and notes of The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists are in
accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:
a.

Giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its performance for the financial year
ended on that date; and

b.

Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission
Regulation 2013; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (Responsible Entities):

Mark Daniell, Director
Sydney, 19th August 2017

Heather Mack, Director
Sydney, 19th August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Level 17, 383 Kent Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Correspondence to:
Locked Bag Q800
QVB Post Office
Sydney NSW 1230
T +61 2 8297 2400
F +61 2 9299 4445
E info.nsw@au.gt.com
W www.grantthornton.com.au

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of The Royal Australian and New Zealand
College of Ophthalmologists
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of The Royal Australian and New Zealand
College of Ophthalmologists (the “Registered Entity”), which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the
Responsible Entities’ declaration.
In our opinion, the financial report of The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of
Ophthalmologists has been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (“ACNC Act”), including:
1.

giving a true and fair view of the Registered Entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and
of its financial performance for the year then ended; and

2.

complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Auditor’s Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the
context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Ltd is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm
is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and
are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its
Australian subsidiaries and related entities. GTIL is not an Australian related entity to Grant Thornton Australia Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Responsibilities for the Financial Report
The Responsible Entities of the Registered Entity are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
ACNC Act, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Responsible Entities are responsible for assessing the
Registered Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Responsible Entities
either intend to liquidate the Registered Entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Registered Entity’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Registered Entity’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Responsible Entities.



Conclude on the appropriateness of the Responsible Entities’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Registered Entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Registered Entity to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

James Winter
Partner - Audit & Assurance
Sydney, 18 August 2018
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